(12) United States DESigIl Patent (10) Patent No.:
Seiders et al.

USODI10235655

US D1,023,565 S

45) Date of Patent: <x Apr. 23,2024

(54)

(71)
(72)

(73)
(**)
(21)
(22)

(63)

(1)
(52)

(58)

(56)

BAG
Applicant: YETI Coolers, LLC, Austin, TX (US)
Inventors: Roy Joseph Seiders, Austin, TX (US);
Dustin Bullock, Austin, TX (US)
Assignee: YETI Coolers, LLC, Austin, TX (US)
Term: 15 Years
Appl. No.: 29/776,421
Filed: Mar. 30, 2021
Related U.S. Application Data
Continuation of application No. 29/705,665, filed on
Sep. 13, 2019, now Pat. No. Des. 920,678, which 1s
a continuation of application No. 29/648,869, filed on
May 24, 2018, now Pat. No. Des. 861,338, which 1s
a continuation of application No. 29/5935,100, filed on
Feb. 24, 2017, now Pat. No. Des. 822,987.
LOC (14) CL. ..., 03-01
U.S. CL
USPC e, D3/246; D7/607
Field of Classification Search
USPC ..., D3/232, 2435, 246, 318; D7/607
CPC ....... F25D 2331/801; F235D 3/08; A45C 11/20
See application file for complete search history.
References Cited
U.S. PATENT DOCUMENTS

1,001,729 A 8/1911 Buchanan et al.

1 113,757 A 10/1914 Crutcher et al.

] 305 797 A 6/1919 Henderson

1,378,928 A 5/1921 Witzel

1,386,557 A 8/1921 Edwards et al.

")107 596 S 12/1937 Felmann

2,188,899 A 2/1940 Hebbard et al.

T A Ta A
.......

2,483,802 A 10/1949 Mogil et al.
2,499,201 A 2/1950 Mogil
2,548,064 A 4/1951 Reinhart

(Continued)

FOREIGN PATENT DOCUMENTS

CA 2483802 Al 4/2006
CA 2499291 Al 9/2006
(Continued)

OTHER PUBLICATTONS

United States District Court Western District of Texas, Austin

Division, “Second Amended Complaint™, Yeti Coolers, LLCv. RTIC
Outdoors, LLC; and Corporate Support & Fulfillment, LLC, Case
1:21-cv-00214-RP, Document 33, filed Dec. 17, 2021, 489 pages.

(Continued)

Primary Examiner — Jennifer L Watkins
(74) Attorney, Agent, or Firm — Banner & Witcofl, Ltd.

(57) CLAIM
The ornamental design for a bag, as shown and described.
DESCRIPTION

FIG. 1 1s a top, front, right perspective view of a bag
Showmg Our new demgn,

IG. 2 1s a front view thereof;

IG. 3 15 a rear view thereof;

IG. 4 1s a right side view thereof;

IG. 5 15 a left side view thereof; and.,

IG. 6 1s a top view thereof.

he broken lines between shaded and unshaded areas deplct
the bounds of the claim and form no part thereof. The zipper
outline 1s claimed with a solid line while the unshaded
subject matter surrounding the outline forms no part of the
claam. The logo patch shown in broken lines depicts a
portion of the article and forms no part of the claim. The
broken lines crossing claimed, shaded surfaces depict a seam

and stitching and form no part of the claim.

— ™ T

1 Claim, 5 Drawing Sheets



US D1,023,565 S

Page 2
(56) References Cited D711,096 S 8/2014 Hanna
D711,098 S 8/2014 Rossignuolo
U.S. PATENT DOCUMENTS D711,100 S 8/2014 Dingizian
D715,544 S 10/2014 Levine
2,575,191 A 11/1951 Seipp ;)7;7,040 S 11/2014 Swa_rtzel et al.
2,771,112 A 11/1956 Ingram :37373041 S 11/2034 Pulliam
2,871,900 A /1959 Auditore D718,931 S 12/2014 Brundl
72054801 A 10/1960 TImber 720,131 S 12/2014 Siegel ..ccooovevvviiiiiiniinnn, D3/233
3.121.452 A 2/1964 Hyman D722,233 S 2/2015 Inskeep
4,116,253 A 9/1978 Watsky D732,348 S 6/2015 Seiders et al.
4,117,874 A 10/1978 Berenguer D732,349 S 6/2015 Seiders et al.
4.180.111 A 17/1979 Davis D732,350 S 6/2015 Seiders et al.
4:211:091 A 7/1980 Campbell D732,899 S 6/2015 Seiders et al.
D263,650 S 4/1982 Schimmel D739,654 S 9/2015 Brouard
D265,948 S 8/1982 Stark 9,139,352 B2 9/2015 Seiders et al.
4,378,806 A 4/1983 Pelavin D743,699 S 1172015 W_leden
4537313 A /1985 Workman D745,268 S 12/2015 Slimane
[)52813546 S 12/1985 Bradshaw 9,254,022 B2 2/2016 Meldeau et al.
D282:602 S *  2/1986 Allen ......cceceeeevvveennen. D3/902 D752,347 S 3/2016 Seiders et al.
4592 091 A 5/1086 Ttalici D752,860 S 4/2016 Barilaro et al.
4610286 A 0/1986 Cyr 0,307,814 B2  4/2016 Pulliam
4723300 A 2/1088  Aranow D758,717 S 6/2016 Joo et al.
4,812,054 A 3/1989 Kirkendall D758,731 5 6/2016 Noh
4,826,060 A 5/1989 Hollingsworth D760,494 5 7/2016  Harvey-Pankey
4961,522 A 10/1990 Weber D761,561 S 7/2016 Cheng
4966279 A 10/1990 Pearcy D762,378 S 8/2016 Domotor et al.
5,143,188 A 9/1992 Robinet :)7535570 S 8/2016 PfJ’EtS |
D340.621 S 10/1993 Melk D763,575 S 8/2016 Tiscareno-Rippe et al.
D340,840 S 11/1993 Melk D764,791 S 82016 Patel
5,490,396 A 2/1996 Morris 765,394 S 9/2016 Moore
5,507,542 A 4/1996 Fden D768,987 S 10/2016 Blumenfeld
5,620,069 A 4/1997 Hurwitz D769,616 S 10/2016 Keene
D387.626 S 12/1997 Melk D770,759 S 11/2016 Gamble et al.
5.813.445 A 0/1998 Christman D770,763 S 11/2016 Joo et al.
5:8485734 A 12/1998 Melk D773,813 S 12/2016 Jakubowski
D422:411 S 4/2000 Martin D774,747 S 12/2016 Gamble et al.
D426,060 S * 6/2000 Chapelier ..................... D3/246 D776,929 5 1/2037 Noh
6,092,661 A 7/2000 Mogil D778,045 S 2/2017 Ruddis
D447.632 S 07001 Gissor 0,578,937 B2  2/2017 Kemn et al.
6,409,066 Bl 6/2002 Schneider et al. D782,820 5 42017 Thompson
6,640,856 B1  11/2003 Tucker :)7845010 S 4/2017 Dumas_
D491,354 S 6/2004 Chapelier D785325 S 5/2017  Samrelius et al.
D497,050 S 10/2004 Grambush D785,930 5 52017 Sassi
6,810,933 B2 11/2004 Gordon et al. :37865559 S 52017 Se!ders et al.
7,071,150 B2 7/2006 Genuyt et al. D786,560 S 5/2017 Seiders et al.
7,073,942 B2 7/2006 Vazquez D786,561 S 5/2017 Se@ders et al.
D525,785 S * 82006 Suppancig ................. D3/246 786,562 5 5/2017 Seiders et al.
D526.120 S &/2006 Iee et al. D787,187 S 5/2017 Seiders et al.
j)535:820 S 1/2007 Kamiya D787,818 S 5/2017 Ge!‘belle
D536.170 S 2/2007 Elson D787.823 S 5/2017 Nair
D539,033 S *  3/2007 Cassegrain .................... D3/246 :)789,080 S 6/2077 Cafi.‘:_lgnl
D582,151 S 12/2008 Gonzalez :)7893081 S 6/2017 Sc‘:18$1
D587.010 S 2/2009 Deck D789,082 S 6/2017 Barilaro et al.
D596,396 S *  7/2000 MCCOY wovvvrrrrereererrerernn D3/232 D797.454 S 9/2017 Seiders et al.
7,581,886 B2 0/2009 Nitti D797,455 S 9/2017 Seiders et al.
7,597,478 B2 10/2009 Pruchnicki et al D798,670 S 10/2017 Seiders et al.
D603,606 S 11/2009 Wang D799,276 S 10/2017 Seiders et al.
D611,706 S 3/2010 Angles et al. D799,277 S 10/2017 Seiders et al.
7,682,080 B2 3/2010 Mogil D800,444 S 10/2017 Burton ...............ouv.... D3/203.1
D617.553 S 6/2010 Shaw D802,297 S 11/2017 Dumas
7 7303739 B2 6/2010 Fuchs D802,373 S 11/2017 Seiders et al.
7:762:294 B2 7/2010 Wang D805,851 S 12/2017 Sullivan et al.
D621,609 S 8/2010 Hasty D808,157 S 1/2018 Viger et al.
D626,.329 S 11/2010 Chapelier D808.,655 S 1/2018 Seiders et al.
D629.612 S 12/2010 Weldon D808, 730 S 1/2018 Sullivan et al.
])6302013 S * 12011 YU oo, D3/232 D811,746 S 3/2018 Seiders et al.
D630,844 S 1/2011 Wang et al. D814,793 S 4/2018 Dean
D632,074 S 2/2011 Chan et al. D814,879 S 4/2018 Larson et al.
j)637:809 S 5/2011 Meldeau D817,106 S 5/2018 Larson et al.
D651,397 S 1/2012 Lett D817,107 S 5/2018 Larson et al.
8,092,087 B2 1/2012 Simhony et al. D¥19,967 S 6/2018 Carter et al.
8,132,601 B2 3/2012 Wang D821,092 S 6/2018 Starck
D663,522 S 7/2012 Schifiman D821,094 § 6/2018 Dragicevic
D673,772 S 1/2013 Munson et al. D821,825 S 7/2018 Sullivan et al.
D684,767 S 6/2013 Gerbi D822,987 S 7/2018 Seciders et al.
D686,412 S 7/2013 Guichot D822,997 S 7/2018 Seiders et al.
D690,100 S 9/2013 Alfaks D822,998 S 7/2018 Seiders et al.
D695,568 S 12/2013 Hayes D822,999 S 7/2018 Seiders et al.
D701,041 S 3/2014 Burnett D823,601 S 7/2018 Seiders et al.



US D1,023,565 S

Page 3
(56) References Cited 2010/0200450 Al 82010 Weed
2010/0282378 Al 11/2010 Scozzatava
1U.S. PATENT DOCUMENTS 2011/0036473 Al 2/2011 Chan et al.
2011/0167863 Al 7/2011 Herrbold
D8§23,602 S 7/2018 Seiders et al. 201170283519 Al 11/2011  Pranger
D824,666 S * 82018 Carter ............cccccoo....... D3/245 201170311166 Al 12/2011  Pascua
D824,731 S 8/2018 Sullivan et al. 2012/0328220 Al 12/2012 Kayata
D830,132 S 10/2018 Sullivan et al. 2013/0133795 Al 5/2013  Zhou et al.
D830,133 S 10/2018 Sullivan et al. 2013/0216158 Al 8/2013  Meldeau et al.
D830,134 S 10/2018 Sullivan et al. 2014/0248003 Al 9/2014 Mogil et al.
D832,571 S 11/2018 Franklin-Daisey 2014/0353347 Al 12/2014  Fischer
D832,579 S * 11/2018 MONIOE ...ooevvevverereren.. D3/307 38#‘5‘? 838?%3 i; 1%8;2 [B)e La gueﬂte Lara
) 1Q T 1 | | rouar
830996 8 1a0lo T e al 2015/0225164 Al 82015 Seiders et al.
:)837,000 S 1/2019 Jacobsen 2015/0265015 Al1* 9/2015 Lee ...occeviivininninn, A45C 7/0077
D837,001 S 1/2019 Jacobsen 190/115
D838.977 S 1/2019 Dragicevic 2015/0265020 Al 9/2015 McCue et al.
10,226,110 B2 3/2019 Hayashi 2016/0083147 Al 3/2016 Mauro
_)344 992 S 4/2019 Seiders et al. 2016/0257479 Al 9/2016 Seiders_et al.
D845.619 S 4/2019 Cronkshaw 2016/0338462 Al 11/2016 Hayashi
D845,626 S 4/2019 Dunleavy et al. 2017/0017596 Al 1/2017 Jang et al.
10,244,841 B2 4/2019 Hayashi 2017/0036844 Al 2/2017 Seiders et al.
D849,406 S * 5/2019 Dehmoubed .................. D3/307 2017/0071304 A1 3/2017 Wang
D851,404 S 6/2019 Seiders et al. 2017/0099920 Al 4/2017 Bailey
D853,728 S 7/2019 Seiders et al. 2017/0210542 Al 7/2017 Seiders et al.
10,384,855 B2 /7019 Seiders et al. 2018/0242701 Al 8/2018 Seiders et al.
D859.812 S 0/2019 Seiders et al. 2018/0317620 A1  11/2018 Larson et al.
D859.813 S 0/2019 Seiders et al. 2019/0071238 Al 3/2019 Seiders et al.
D859,814 S 9/2019 Seiders et al. 2021/0345740 A1 11/2021 Seiders et al.
D859,815 S 9/2019 Seiders et al.
860,634 S 9/2019 Seiders et al. FORFIGN PATENT DOCUMENTS
10,413,030 Bl 9/2019 Douglas et al.
:)861 338 S 10/20__59 S(_alders et al. CA 2548064 Al 11/2007
_)868 545 S 12?20_59 Lin ebt al. CN 7188800 Y 2/1995
D&71,750 S 1/2020 Noh CN 1855170 Y 1/2007
D871,765 S 1/2020 Seiders et al. CN 701011906 Y 1/2008
:)880,862 S 4/2020 Seiders et al. CN 301447931 S 1/2011
D385,746 5 6/2020 Evancho CN 302137314 10/2012
:)886,538 S 6/2020 Jacobsen CN 302868215 7/2014
:)886 539 S 6;2020 "aclfl) JSIE;II . CN 302877656 7/2014
D887,699 S 6/2020 Bullock et al. -
10,827,808 B2 11/2020 Seiders et al. gﬁ %83?23?%8 v ggg;
D904 830 S 12/2020 Meda et al. CN 304181831 6/2017
D906,058 S 12/2020 Sullivan et al. CN 304207295 7/2017
10,863,806 B2* 12/2020 Shaffett ................ A45C 7/0036 CN 304342577 11/2017
D907,969 S 1/202f Su_llwan et al. CN 206760980 U 12/2017
OIS0 S 52021 Seiders et al N SUS27075 32018
DASSTO S 2001 Seders ctal. DE  4020162036690001 102017
_)920 678 S 6//(202; Sei&lers et .‘:1%. EM 001067250-00073 7/2009
D923,323 S 6/2021 Seiders et al. - -
13931,614 S 9/2021 Seiders et al. Eﬁ 88122328_8883 %ggg
D934,031 S * 10/2021 L1 .o, D3/202 EM 001725466-0003 S 72010
D935,175 S 11/2021 Rogers et al. EM 001909490-0001 /2011
11,266,215 B2 3/2022 Larson et al. EM 002073452 -0001 /2012
:)948,954 S : 4//(2022 Seiders .........ooeviiiiiininl D3?246 FM 002085308-0003 /2012
958,524 S 7/2022 Carrouee ......oovevvininnnn, D3/246 i -
11,407,579 B2 8/2022 Munie et al. Eﬁ 8835323%2_885? ;ggg
:)963,334 S : 9//{2022 Lee v, D3;232 EM 002262436-0001 7/2013
D963,335 S 9/2022 Martin ........ooooviiiiiiniinnnn, D3/276 i -
s § 4 (90 Martin DYIe EM o0daconoo2 7201
D972,838 S * 12/2022 Byrd ****************************** D3/232 EM 002476853-0001 6/2014
:)975,501 S * 1/2023 Setders ....ooocovevvviviiniinnnn, D7/607 FM 002476853-0002 6/2014
D979 238 S * 2/2023 Piccioll .ooviiiiiiiiinn, D3/246 FM 002530519-0001 0/2014
")989 565 S * 6/2023 Seiders ......oooveviiiiiiiininn D3/289 EFM 002605345-0004 12/2014
2004:;0055679 Al 3//{2004 (Gordon et al. EM 002609404-0001 1/2015
2005/0011520 Al 1/2005 Rowe -
20050028910 AL 212005 Duty EM 0031173240000 $01¢
2006/0198562 Al 9/2006 Mogll M 003329929-0001 /2016
2006/0201979 Al 9/2006 Achilles EM 003409044-0008 10/2016
2007/0137960 Al 6/2007 Redzisz EM 003504331-0027 12/2016
2007/0274613 A1  11/2007 Pruchnicki et al. EM 003733021-0001 2/2017
2008/0083629 Al 4/2008 Soucie EP 0037545 A2 10/1981
2010/0084443 Al 4/2010 Adelman EP 1386557 Al 2/2004




US D1,023,565 S
Page 4

(56) References Cited
FORFEIGN PATENT DOCUMENTS

EP 2461711 6/2012
EP 3020303 Al 5/2016
EP 003811264-0010 3/2017
EP 003841857-0002 4/2017
EP 004122430-0001 8/2017
EP 004162337-0001 9/2017
EP 004162337-0002 9/2017
EP 004162337-0003 9/2017
EP 004162337-0004 9/2017
EP 004162337-0005 9/2017
EP 004162337-0006 9/2017
EP 004424059-0002 10/2017
EP 0044 17749-0003 11,2017
EP 004494086-0016 11/2017
EP 004494086-0017 11/2017
EP 002719245-0001 1/2018
EP 005269248-0002 5/2018
EP 005303559-0001 7/2018
EP 005303559-0003 7/2018
FR 1113757 A 4/1956
GB 968422 A 9/1964
GB 2225103 A 5/1990
JP 1123533 S 10/2001
JP 2004073820 A 3/2004
KR 200177739 Y1 5/2000
WO 07071150 Al 6/2007
WO 17017596 Al 2/2017
WO 17079315 Al 5/2017
WO 17088278 Al 6/2017
WO 17132598 Al 8/2017

OTHER PUBLICATIONS

United Stated District Court Western District of Texas, Austin
Division, “Answer of Defendants RTIC Outdoors, LL.C and Cor-
porate Support & Fulfillment, LLC to Yeti’s Second Amended
Complaint, Jury Trial Demanded”, Yeti Coolers, LLC v. RTIC
Outdoors, LLC; and Corporate Support & Fulfiliment, LLC, Case

1:21-cv-00214-RP, Document 34, filed Jan. 3, 2022, 92 pgs.

United States District Court Western District of Texas Austin
Division, “Defendants RTIC Outdoors, LLC’s and Corporate Sup-
port & Fulfillment, LL.C’s Invalidity Contentions”, Yeti Coolers,
LLC v. RTIC Outdoors, LLC and Corporate Support & Fulfillment,
LLC, Case No. 1:21-cv-00214, Jury Trial Demanded, filed Jan. 17,
2022, 3173 pages.

Exhibits C-8, D-6, E-6, and F-6 “Filson Rugged Twill Bucket Bag”,
U.S. District Court Western District of Texas, “Defendants RTIC
Outdoors, LLC’s and Corporate Support & Fulfillment, LLC’s
Invalidity Contentions™, Yeti Coolers, LLC v. RTIC Qutdoors, LLC,
Case No. 1:21-cv-00214, Jan. 17, 2022, pp. 486-491, 568-582,
649-661, and 722-735.

Reusable Shopping Bag, ADK Packworks™ The Packbasket™
Reusable Shopping Bag, [retrieved Jun. 13, 2017], Date unknown
but at least as ealry as Jun. 13, 2017.

Frakta Shopping bag, http://www.1kea.com/us/en/catalog/products/
17228340/ , [retrieved Jun. 13, 2017], Date unknown but at least as

early as Jun. 13, 2017.
3Pcs Eco Friendly Large Capacity Reuseable Shopping bag, http://
www.dhgate.com/product/3pcs-eco-friendly-large-capacity-reuseable/

395600522 html#s2-28-1;d1sc%7C2511216197, [retrieved Jun. 13,
2017], Date unknown but as early as Jun. 13, 2017.
Wholesale Shopping Bag,http:// www.dhgate.com/product/2017-

factory-wholesale-shopping-bags-polyester/394587619.html#s1-9-
1;d1sc%7C3274647288, [retrieved Jun. 13, 2017], Date unknown
but as early as Jun. 13, 2017.

Press Release—Portable Hopper 30 Cooler [online], [retrieved Jun.
14, 2017], Retrieved from Internet <URL: http://yeti.com/press-
releases/hopper-30>>; 2 color sheets, Dated Jul. 9, 2014.

Yet1 Reinvents the Hopper [online], [retrieved Jun. 14, 2017],
Retrieved from Internet <URL: http://yeti.com/press-releases/hopper-
two-soft-cooler>; 2 color sheets, Dated Feb. 1, 2017.

RTIC, “Large Beach Bag”, <https://www.rticcoolers.com/shop/travel/
Large-Beach-Bag-Sky-Blue> [retrieved Dec. 26, 2018], Date unknown
but at least as early as Dec. 26, 2018.

RTIC, “RTIC Large Beach Bag” (https://www.amazon.com/RTIC-
Large-Beach-Bag/dp/BO7FQYKF8Q?th=1), first available online
Jul. 20, 2018. (Year: 2018).

Jul. 26, 2019—(CN) First Office Action—App 20180157521.6.
Mar. 30, 2020—(CN) Oflice Action—App. No. 201810157521.6.
Apr. 23, 2020—U.S. Final Office Action—U.S. Appl. No. 15/903,867.
Sep. 16, 2020—(CN) Rejection Decision—App. No. 201810157521.
0.

United States District Court Western District of Texas, Austin
Division, “Complaint for Damages and Injunctive Relief tor: (1)-
(12) Patent Infringement in Violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271; and (13)
Breach of Contract”, Yeti Coolers, LLCv. RTIC Qutdoors, LL.C; and
Corporate Support & Fulfiliment, LLC, Case 1:21-cv-00214, filed
Mar. 5, 2021, 338 pages.

United States District Court Southern District of Texas Houston
Division, “Plaintiff Yet1’s Complaint for Patent Infringement”, Yeri
Coolers, LLC v. Igloo Products Corporation, Case 4:21-cv-00505,
filed Feb. 12, 2021, 98 pages.

United States District Court Eastern District of Missour1 Eastern
Division, “Complaint, ‘Complaint for Damages and Injunctive
Reliet™”, Yeti Coolers, LI.C v. Discover Home Products, [.I.C, Case
4:21-cv-00836, Document 1, filed Jul. 9, 2021, 68 pages.

United States District Court Western District of Texas, Austin
Division, “First Amended Complaint, ‘Complaint for Damages and
Injunctive Relief tor: (1)-(15) Patent Infringement in Violation of 35
U.S.C. § 271, and (16) Breach of Contract’”, Yeti Coolers, LLC v.
RTIC Outdoors, LLC,; and Corporate Support & Fulfiliment, LLC,
Case 1:21-cv-00214-RP, Document 10, filed Jun. 2, 2021, 39 pages.
United States District Court Western District of Texas, Austin
Division, “Answer of Defendants RTIC Outdoors, LL.C and Cor-
porate Support & Fulfillment, LLC to Yeti’s Amended Complaint:
(1)-(15) Patent Infringement 1in Violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271; and
(16) Breach of Contract”, Yeti Coolers, LLC v. RTIC Qutdoors,
LLC, and Corporate Support & Fulfillment, LLC, Case 1:21-cv-
00214-RP, Document 16, filed Jun. 17, 2021, 79 pages (See pp. 45,
46, 66-77 alleging 1invalidity).

United States District Court Middle District of Florida, Tampa
Division, “Complaint for Damages and Injunctive Relief, and
Demand for a Jury Tnal”, Yeti Coolers, LLC v. Bore, LLC, Case
8:23-cv-00370, Document 1, filed Feb. 17, 2023, 125 pages.
United States District Court Middle District of Florida, Tampa
Division, “Defendant’s Answer and Aflirmative Defennses to Plain-
tiff’s Complaint for Damages and Injunctive Relief (Doc. 1), and
Defendant’s Demand for a Jury Trial”, YETT Coolers, LLC v. Bote,
LLC, Case 8:23-cv-00370-WFIJ-MRM, Document 38, filed Apr. 20,
2023, 46 pages.

* cited by examiner



US D1,023,565 S

Sheet 1 of 5

Apr. 23, 2024

U.S. Patent

oo~ !
. r4!t
L L
.L,____.t___ hhhh\....r...
’ .
% L .
’ ...,u. o 1
0 XA | ; 1 #}
.,._.-.. .1.1 ._- --.-‘1 - u. "
_1 .1_- - il -.-l..u..- ey aE klll Bl wEy En Epm H L
! .-\.n u;m TN 2N ¢ Bt : b
T S riu ] :
il S 1 X
il ey 1 R—
A N | s e i
Y A i T e —~
._._._...\____. -___.rn_ .....1:‘. .ﬁ. .ﬂ .-1.1 “.q “
- 2 _.H_ ! iH i
- i AFLEY B ot
LT ‘" e £ 1 7,
x\.\ L e b or & Iy
- - Yy 5 !
...._u.ﬂ_._-_.., ...Iiku..m\l...ii.fll._..ru.}..mﬂ_u . » 5!
” " ..-_....u._.___.,...__._.-.__ - - ﬂ.,..hn.h‘_____!r £
A Lo T e H
A R
s \ oo .ﬁilllhh“h”ﬂrtptirt+!I+t+
....-\..._..tt.__. ~ u\.\.ﬁhpi‘.\-v P . B e wew e e e e W Ee mw— e e wm o —
A / 5
......\1..\”11 E ‘_...\_..\_1\___ ..__.1....\.._-_.. - ..._-._..,I T .”. MII“.-”lI.”_.I“..H_II.“...“uHIJII.-.H.H....“-”.I...;I:.HL.-.:I \....\.....u.l...hl.l.“l.r.nl.r.- e
A A ~ e Btk T T NN S N E RN E RN ARENESNE RS RS RE 5
ol IR T ey i : N t TR A WO ww T R o S o o
AR - . v o« , st 7,
12,5000 n 8l EY e iy 2 Lt R g e Al s I
18 n.._u..ux “ Ao T , .e__.. ! ; ...._.._. ¢ 11 h . e e T 4 /
L___._-.___.__ .__..___...\ .______H ! ...._.. s ..,._.__“_._ J & u T ! ' ) g S : } ! M i Av w—.___. J 4
1f ¢ ey o4 ay ;oY i3 f ! ] P f
155 s Tp 7, ity fe SN D ? Y 5ot
..a...%...ﬂ.\.... .._.m_____.u_,.*. ___wx h___.:__ﬁ } F H ...__.__.___ ’ ' ..........l.]....l.,tl-lr.._lunl._.....--..u_.ll.. tuwl u_m hx /
Hhﬁ”ﬂhﬁ ___ __.'.‘._.__..4-_.&- ....___.._- ....._*mﬁ- £ 44 ST !ijti!hﬂiw*jliillhililﬂ% ..H-lll.-l.lll-..-.l...l.l;f..lllf..l...llllll.l.._l._.l.-_l.l.__l._l.l.-.l.ll”.._l.l”l e o T f ._.
“..-.. J 4 ___**.*- W ._____.____.1 H‘._ﬁ 3N PRI F - = - .ﬂ - 7 - |p-‘.‘.-|. . l:f.lr.fi-l-..llrln;ll-.-lfr.-.lll.l..ltllr..llllullll-..l..ll.fra_
NARRILINS NI P08 / S /
. _.-. ¢ _- .-._._ .11 _.. .ﬂ ﬁm. = =x + . d m—EeEEEmomEEE O mEEEEEomEEEEmomEEE mEEEEEmmEE== I.-Il_t\.
i ATk .__:._._.__. JroH ___ﬂ:.. i i
:"t__.,. PR e R e WD T T ..__H.. A di
: s - K «Ffy r ) .
b 4t 0 s/ i y .
_u _ N 1._, .u.. ___.._..______. ! - hq __:.1_?_ _..._._-1 ..-.. -u._._ LI o B il
L 0t “ 2 R 17 BN dh ot od : § !
ﬂ_"_- ﬁ b ﬁ% u_ .______.‘_-. ﬂ.-_f__.r__ _-i._.-.n ttttttttt r+-_._ . r b'.-. ]
Bt tdy ] ? ﬂ.”. 0 it §or Y Py / ! M
1 ' N ] - '] L]
iy by ! 2 ey it ‘i o ! ! “
Wt % SRS | S A e ef e . ) i
AR p - T LT T FIL N L N i ! 4
AR e e y . . #¥
.#.r. u:: P - S - 4 y . i
i u s pit §r ey S / ! #
Mi(s 7 Y/ . ! !
e A , _ oo 1 ee————— 17
Vg s s I A — { ;T
....W - g fi " ! N , I
" = ) pEi ff 2 ¥ ! . i
#./. , it §or Y 4 g / "
S pad £ H J { - "
Yy, pitt § oy t ! N Y
v R bRt ry i ! i R "
\ T o~ | P —
] I e L et § Y 1
........ R i 8y i ’
- LI . T f i 1
.~ TN TSN f 7 %
. Il i NI VTRV O \ } R T L M
- T pest dok it aialieindaliahaiei i el ;
..,.f._ el T e a { . 2 oY Iy
“_ - L.ii?..:ﬂh;.%..lh + 4 w.._ FFfieialetafieglieiofungiaintgutpguingfieie e e e iy i gyt e g g ! A
~ .,.I.!Lw.ln.n..hﬁ.u,..t SR e R E oI e e e e e e e S I
- o . .m_ . L - a
- ! . r R '§
— f -._ k s 4 Q?:ﬂ!.hl..“.-f\u.li T L v et d i “_____._ N
. — 4 L~ h g 1.._-
!

. ’ L. } __._w.. .w aﬁ iy F .‘.__...._
. : F .

-
- !
-, \m J :
oo § } rd f
- + Y v i + }
- royg VA U R S . : Sooe)
T ooy {7 LN - s P U A S
ﬂf . ..-_..__..___...I_._._._.._.__..._.__.._.__...__..___...i.._._.._._-..__il._.__...n.._..l...l..ltl.]illi-l..ﬂi.?ﬂ”ﬂlﬂl”ﬂﬂﬂﬂ”ﬂﬂﬂ}._.l_.l_........l:l,.l.l._.l_...l...-..l:l_. H ! /
.___.I,..i o rTmommmmEmEmmmmmmmm iy
§j TN T T e T e e e ware el e e we e e ce Wl we e et re e . -
w..._. iiiiii et
—_— ||.l||.-.l:l..|]|r1l|.l..1.l|i.lnl..lzir..l|.l.l.l|..rll _-.11

M
7 i”
7

e 3
» u..
i

Fol
.l.rtII.-l.I|||1. v

2 .

FIG. 1



US D1,023,565 S

Sheet 2 of §

R i

Apr. 23, 2024

U.S. Patent

el
. ]
'R
'
'R
'
g
'
'R
'
'R
'
g
'
'R
" 3 II.I..lI:lJ..r.....r-....II.I
" 3 ——n M IIIFII.II,l,.__l.Jf-..l.I. ]
" 1 -ﬁ .r.....l.-..-l..l.._rulil IIIII - ...-..-.I..I.Ilrl.r.-.....rllll. “
. ¥ R j e
" ] : - Ji;flii...l.r....,.illll.,.ur e § ¢ -
P I T “ 1
' ! : T !
" i e _ i [} _
'R 0} ’ . _
' iy u
' I i ; !
m L —.U T ..._-.l..lln..ll.-..l..ll...ll..l....rl.l.rljl.l..lun.-ll. M _. “
" ._ q* . .l..l.||...|l..l..l....l.l...l|l..l ".
' Iy i ane TN
" i _ m r _
'R } !
' ! r i
' ;. e et mmm = mmmm = mmmm = me mm e me mm e e = e e e e e = mm et = mm . e am . mm am . e '
! ( . ; v 3!
e e oo S N S . ! M Bk
e T m}fiﬂii!llmlllti.lmﬂitl{iiﬂ___ ﬁll.-.._.iirlliir]iifiliirtiilalil;titllilul...-..1-...._._.._..1-...._...11-.-.._._.._..i..u- ‘ : ' _
i x * Fy ‘ ¢ :
- ’ . . i '
- N ; t b ¢ H FT T - F - T F- - 37 ; “ 4 i v 4
¢ Mg !N 2% X r 3 I g ! e 1
vy TRV T B T : 1 1 3 = ; =y
§ ._1_.- 5 FAN . $ t .” A N .ﬂ .w } - ¥ t
b, 1 PN ! 1 : ' 'S I * i
ﬁ l\. .f ﬁ H 1-. ...ft ﬁ ﬂ . .l.w - B -E W+ BF - .l....._J.l..l. - W+ B -E W B ._.".l. ..l....l..l. +E W BE +E h e +E = - &w = I_OWI.H M n “_ m " “
§! o { £ \} C ; R
R T W Swm mr gl BE sk sem meh s sms mak uwss sms ek v ses Sk rak s dresk ol ol drsh wol o sk wak ok odesh wak ok akm ?m .”l .”l_I .”” *”l “_I “” ” H.- -1” .”l “._- h.-.h..r”” ” ”” “” ”--m '“”””“ “” ”” ”” —1.” ”. ”” ”” ”. ”“ ”” ”. ””. ”” -” ”” ”” ”” ”H. ”” ”” ””. ”“ ”” ”.l ””“” ”” ”” “” ”””“ “” ”.l.r.__“ “ m t n
; . 'y 17 * 4 W i ' " i
1 : 3 L
_u i mh ' ! e : ] |
T [ . N T [ s i o o o S o o L L L e B el B e o B e e e o e e o e e B R
T i i 4 . 1 i v 3
Vi | ; “ 2
IR ' H y i g
"__ {1 1 % ' q_..“ ; _ _
i . .— !!!!! wallnm '
uu bt g4 " ] ! ...._. LY ! ' i
TR ' 1} J _ § P
o P P k _ _ ! 2E
-.ﬁ .*. ) 1 m ]
y P . - ! | - - | e P 4
Wl b . ) ; | : B
N " ' g . i P
b b ! _ _ ﬂ e ]
Wb - \ _ | : P f
D ‘o {} i i =N
A i ' . i T t
TERRR Y ' H _ _ i vof
N 1t (: b it ' : , . :
M P ¥ ! ; :
R | Y ' . i : !
"* { ! 1 " i i t _ i b [
Wb b i : : ' .
S N Y ' 1 ' i . :
A | ' . i b .
' I ' H + ) i v 51
nﬂ u n ﬁ“ m “ qﬁ _-.r }}}}}} - m w —
IR . i 1 ar
: T I ' ! i v 34
'y 10 ¥ ' i : gl
_H { | g m ' 1} ; : _
__— {1 ! um " ] II IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII i " !
i, 10 . . i oY ) L 5
— - — J— —— -t e s wer irs & & i L _J -5 &8 L _J i a il ook el ol irm wah - airm ok - wirm ol -or wirwm ol -l wirn ol H' wirs B ol 1‘“#- ol ol wirs drsh vl e . e ol bl e droh drak . o wir e ok ullr airm dralk -l irm ok -ao wirwm ol .-l wirm dral -l wirr draf raolir wirr drof vl wirr droh ralir wirr drsh ol e e ok e ol ol ok ok ullr wirel ek - ullr wlir m *ﬁ " M ". _
- ! Sl i alited i el ebeindb il s it i * .y
F *
A ;) 5 - o8 S - ' ¢ §
LI } y v d (¥ y £ g 3 . ! : v 4
t v g N . : ¥ 5 o iy ; i
S s oAt ; : 3 3y “ aE
Yoty iy e ow ! y Y 1 X { ST : 3
S — H r‘ 1- " ﬂ ‘s. .’. —. ﬂ .I..W.-il. - - P - .l._..ﬂ.l. - a - - ma mam  m “.-. - - ma mom - - I..H_ - - mam - - -.l.ﬂnH M ¥ u. h J. _
- . * . [ |
-r,......i-:--:--:--:--:;-::-::-::-::-1.:_--:--:.-:-;--.:---:--:--:--t:--:--:--:--:--:--:.-- - ” _ "
- ! 7 ; 3
I e e '
! : ' I
'K o -
m ._ _.ﬁ ﬂ .l..-.ll.....l..l.l..l..l..-.. _
' { o - t i
] _ _— e ———— 1
o ! e e T “ N
' _ T K . !
' _._ﬁ b
' i t |
' y§ t
H H ' i
' Jpp— n... '
' i o - ' |
' | o —— .
' e — ' ' i
' 1 o L &
. * R } :
o _ T i L
H —ﬂ I..il.ll.l..l.ll...l.ll..l i.l.l._..].,.ll.lllnil m
" - ——— T -
' v.._ m— T . T
" 3 .l.-u..l..l.__-lill.l ‘.ﬁ ._.-Ill._-...l.l.1..l..l||..il.l...1.ll.|.l..| ...-.Il-l._-........!.l1l...| M L..-..l...lll.l.'.ll-.l..l -
' - — i — T
" ] e llllltlle.wl!!llll
'
'
'R
'
g
'
'
'
g
'
g
vl
r..__L..._-...._.




US D1,023,565 S

Sheet 3 of 5

Apr. 23, 2024

U.S. Patent

R i

o

r: B TEE —m- Em rm Cme wm rm e W rm —me W e e ww e e
pr—
= am A
; Eam =T
- .

[ .
Tt W S wr M B cuk dem mak cde oses mek wss sms wek vee sen deak vl len sk vl aher sk wole sl sk wak a olenk wek  ak alew

Mat Sgh gmy gy Egh pEy S Spk Wy gy Sp oy gEy Sl iy gy St . pEn Spt gl gl Ept pE pEn gt Gl pEn Mt Mg gy gt Sgh gEgE S, g e Mg, pEm

¥

= s sl - e w ek wirs & T = - A &= - L Y] i ek e al wlir wirm ek -alr wirm Bk -l wirm  draf -l wirm ok -alr lir m e ol

- e e w— rw e e e e e

|

k¥
k¥
]

i.-..

L ]

‘“"'“.‘.'“n'.‘nf_’_‘.nf-..-‘l'--'.“-l'--'b“'--'h-‘f--'h-'-.'-m“"-
-+

- rEm Em amE mEm o g

*

I'uu_uu_uu_‘.u_‘.—u-‘“u_‘-u_‘.uu“uu‘.uu‘.u
=

\

g
™

gt s gy Egh  Egh  gEy
L.

i 4

-
----.--—'--'-:

r
- _P.- i ol el wirm sk vl

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

=
e i e . . e . i e . i e e i e . . e . i e . i e . i e . i e . i e . i e . i

- A N TEr AT i TE

ol ine- alrwk el alr. e bk - ey bl sk o

== - -a

[ - .-

R B K R B K X B K B B K X B K X B _E X B E X B _E B _E K X B E X E _E B _E _E X B E & _BE _E X B2 E X B K B B _E X }
. e e . e . . e ey i e e i e e . e . . e . i e e i e e

{

-

e T S

h T

iy. T

l§

1)

Iy

H

by T ——

q* I

I

)

B e ot e e o e e o e e e e e e et o e ot o e . e e ot e e ot o o

L .

H i
3 | P !
) -, - - - = = -, T - = . - - - - = - - - - -....—_..__ i __“ “
Pl : : 3 e,y
: RS 3 X 1 {1 S
: S S -V SO X . , ” :

W __

= =

I‘Hﬁﬂw-“ﬂfﬂ'“

“1‘

L &

’.-I
-
™
M'h.
-

~ -
R

Ny
e
=
o
b

¥
b
'

]
]

e

—_

I3

#

14
i}
0
H
i$

1.

it
if
1}
H
if

1.

b
if
1}
H
i
1}
i

i

1}
]
i
1}
L

if-

1
H

I}

- - _—a s - - ea - _—— aa .

S Emy g mpm pEmy  omga EpE ey Sy wpm gy

_— — — ——

AF WS TR TR TS s pp S g R A
iy Em mgm g, mgE Em pmy, mgE am ey, mga mgud

- -—— amEw - amEm w . - am

—— [Ep—

|

- ENEE BN AR BN SN AR B BN AN BN SEEAT ENEE BAEE  SEME NN EOEE  GEmSr RN BN SEmg  ENE BN Emy  EREE EEE aEm,  EEE ELEE oy EEE B BAmm,  EEOE ELAE BOEm Emam EmEm R omy

o T R

f
3

'
W wFie P B e T W e
s

—
- ——

i olir ulir dr ok drak . ol e ol e ool ulir wirm ok -l wirm Brak -l wirm ol el wirm o -l wirr  drof vl wirr e vl wirr sk vl wirr drsh vl ulir L wlir L ] ulir iral ol -l wirm e
N SE A FE I T iE ST T A N O T A R W O FE O OFE O T BT O T FFE O FEF O T B R T BE T O ST e e S

i E T il -4 TE i -

B U e I N e s T S L L R

e

Ep—l

|l.l|.l-|-.l
e

g EE s EE EEE EEJ JEE S EE. JEE EaSE EE. WA ESE S . WS ESE SE. WS ES S WS ESE S EEE ESy S SEa Eay IS SRS ES TSR SES M EEE S JEE ESE  SEJ JEE NS EE. JEE ESE SE. WS ESE SE. EEE ESE SN, WS ESE S EEE ESE S SEE Ea S SRS ESp ISE  SEa Ea FSE SRS ey ESE S JEE EaSE SEJS JEE S EE. JEE maE aE. WmaE o=

FIG. 3



US D1,023,565 S

Sheet 4 of 5

Apr. 23, 2024

U.S. Patent

Lok B R o B oK o B R R R R o R R o o K o R K o R R o ]

b
3
h!

b
b

Lok R K b R oK o R

m1.r...r...-1l1.!l1.-1.-1.-_.l1..-1l1.-1l1.-1l|.-1|.-. -
- “H

"
mrr  res vl werw  mruels wular serw wrals Telr J -

’liili’liL

_ - i!

._-l._.ll..ll.._-l.._.ll..ll..__l.__.ll-h -

i | 3 - (i

AN -MEM  SRAS AAN -AERE  SRAN AR LA AN -
e e e e e e e rlr.i' ..II||-.I.I.. H
- |
g
S RS g *
1_- lllllllllllll il li-..-_._l “
r~—=———-- — RN y
_..-l.-_._.-.-l_._.-_-r-_._l_..l_.l_._r.-_.l_ll_.._ﬁ J,__.__.r w+

e mEp . s Lmm Eps s SR EEs SE SEE SRS SAp SR SRS Ay SEE SRS SR SEE  EES RSy LS SRS RS SR SRS RSy SR SEE RS SER SEE EaSE Em e e SR aEs Emam oam

-,
- e L
- ~
el ¥
Rl S, H
. R —_—— H llllllllllllllllllllll L mmm e e e e e e —————
- .
e " —.H llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll
— B e D . H ||||||||||||||||||||
- e i i
- Ty Ty - - -
- L T .”_-l L . ——p— = _u +
S
_— i 1 ; e e sy
. - e, T . - T - - = - - = e e e e Ay gy L R L o P iy, s g M S S Sl e T e s ol i ml
e I e R s e e s LT TR e R O e S - e et
T - r.l..r-..- g . —r - j..._.l..Il-...... .
A L — Ay el el —_ — )
. e cw w- rw i . wr ww w wm e w s o e e R T, —— e L AP —— = e
T e i e Tttt ettt i S - 2 S o e Jey~ LY o Pt Nt . S e = I
- Ll =momr T EOTE OEEREE T m mar mmc drsh rar sm- smsh mar s drsh walm smc dmak ower
Y - Falr o (¥ T ] .._ L
- .- ..H..- - B mmmm s W] emssmsssssssssss s s,
. - B . . '
- - ¥ .“ 1
. - .-.“-.-...‘- " . Ar. rap———— Ar. rap———— Ar. .r..-..-..l..m.
- o~
. L . i
- - A " ._ _.
- “..- ol B T T T T T T T - ——— r
- — ' .“ r
._...... -~ n.___.-___... I T T .
- . ] k
e L= ' j
‘l— -
- L4 : '
.l < ' i
- -~ R T .
- ra " j t
- - ....I.h H .ﬁ _.
s ” '
5 ' t
-~ ..n-._. ] .“ L]
- ] .
> e ' j b
) r -~ ' k-
- o H ] !
i ] r-
-~ d ' i T b
-t - ' .
A ] k
- ) : )
- ] ]
- - -_.- . - -_—— - - - - - k. - - - = .I‘-. ' .." -
] 1
-.._’... Bl . e Pt e R Pk e .ﬂ s ] .“ L]
L 4 ' ;
RN ERE AW WL B RE B A .-m - ' ”'
_.-_ - L] k
z ] - "
'.I - mm s - me s - e sl - - ] ._ L]
. ] .
L T T T R L T - M j 1
o g g = '
LI ﬁ.__ ]
-— -— " u b e mmelr - s e ow dw ol - ulw e w mmele - ke ol el - sk .ll L BN e el -l ok ol L] L N ] L] L N e e ok ww wler L] e wh - wh 1 ok ol w1 ok ol ke e wh - wh 1 P' - ke w1 r.‘ - b ke LN Y wh 1 [ BN ] k- r-‘ -
1
] ; ]
e ' h i .
- - - - v F R X Y - &E T - - . - . -.
_ . ' i )
el B Bl el B | - ¥ ﬁ_. X
[ ~ ' : ! '
whwr bt e sbw hwhk wih ool Rk wh ol " ] -
I . TN ' —_. i '
] .-
_l. ms mE L mE mm i s mm -.Iﬂ . " ﬂ. u '
] M M
b e e e i = = = == ea -, ' ' :
- T ] “. .“ ]
] k
.... ~ . . I )
- . . -.
* )
N N P ; ﬁ .
1
~ . ’ Y i b
v ] .
L ! L I ﬂ k
- ™ : !
. . _ ! :
“u ......___.! ] [
“u i ] . I
= e A T MR :
o . H F
- T ' ¢
S S, ) .
- N " !
- e ' .
- e ¥ M '
.l.f .r’rI.I.l . ................................... A
-~ m, alm, P - .q
-~ e " .
o M P
.l.-...-..._ = " F
~ T 3 -5 e X
~ b L i
T orm, . ' t
-.fu - .,J.J_l.[ 'l. . LLLLLLLLL [
ol e - Bw ' 1
- l" - '.l.'-.‘..[...l l'.- I.-.I-i“.-u . wr sem e sk em smm mmekr -sm e mas em dmwm sl -sm smm mes em dmwm mas -sm dmwm mals L wm sk e L dmm mals L L L mm mar [ ¥} dm ek moar - aln * mlm
bl ] L . - '.I.a‘.{l.‘l.l.'l P —l. lll..lllll.llll.llllll.l.ll.l1lllllllll - ——_— il b o . s i.....“l‘.r L '..'.h'. LRI L R F.‘..‘.‘.—Hl-.‘.”.‘.ll.—..'l - l..'.. L '.l.lll.l“l .r..‘.-'.lr - - - -..H‘ = ¥l “ |.-I.'..1 L N R | |..'. .‘..—.H”l...’rh. v.'..r L LR h
il Q- S b, mm o mm m ams o ma am me ome w ma omm e  F TREEOREmRmEEe Sam l..._“.. “.I -— " - - ” .n.l.. 1I|1 l.l“ - - - l..l“_. - .-.1..- .-l o ” .-..I.. .-..“ --.Pl.u mar
- .- - - - - -

FIG. 5

FIG. 4

- B S ] e - T L . - m b T S T I ke momke R e e e e - e e -



U.S. Patent Apr. 23, 2024 Sheet 5 of 5 US D1,023.565 S

li--ﬂl--l-i-ﬂl'l-l--h--l--l-*-l--l-*—--l--ll-ll--l-*--ﬁ*-ii-ﬁ-ﬁ-i-ﬁ'l-l-*--l-i-lil--l--l-ll‘

¢

tnr-p-w---i--.r-—i--.r--rw-u-u-u-u-ul-.r--uw‘-'-uw-ilulw-u-'ulw-i-w-—i-'w-—

P L] T - T P FL - L ] - e T e Pl L et e e T L Ful —='Fa '  FaTs T - F¥ = Tt PV L] e -

- Wl i - e - B

FIG. 6



	Claims
	Front Page
	Specification
	Drawings

